
Selectmen’s Minutes – April 25, 2007                                    Page 1 of 7 

GILFORD BOARD OF SELECTMEN’S MEETING 

April 25, 2007 

Town Hall 

The Board of Selectmen convened in a regular session on Wednesday, April 25, 2007 at 3:00 
p.m. at the Gilford Town Hall, 47 Cherry Valley Road, Gilford, NH.  Selectmen present were 
Chairman Alice H. Boucher, Connie Grant and Gus Benavides.  Also present were Assistant 
Town Administrator Debra Shackett and Administrative Secretary Stephanie Verdile 
Philibotte.   

Absent was: Town Administrator Evans Juris. 
 
1.0     PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – The Selectmen recited the Pledge of Allegiance. 

22.0     REVIEW/APPROVAL OF MINUTES – The Board of Selectmen approved the 
regular and non-public minutes of the Selectmen’s meeting of April 11, 2007 and the regular 
minutes of the work session meeting of April 11, 2007.   
 

  3.0     PUBLIC HEARING - 

        3.1 Classic Car Night- Paul Hanley, representing Nassau Broadcasting explained       the 
request to hold Classic Car Nights on the property of Bertha Mae’s- Route 11/11B on the 
following dates: June 4/11/18/25; July 9/16/23/30 and August 6/13/20 of 2007 from the hours 
of 6 p.m. to 8 p.m.  
 
   Public Input- George Walley said he had attended the previous events and they are well run 
and organized and he said traffic has not been a problem during the car show events. 
  
Chairman Boucher closed public hearing. 
 
Selectman’s Questions- G. Benavides asked about having the events during Bike Week and 
what impact will Bike Week have on the attendance.  P. Hanley said it may bring some extra 
spectators but they have not had additional problems with traffic.  
 
Chairman Boucher closed public hearing. 
 
C. Grant made motion to approve the request to hold Classic Car nights on the dates and times 
submitted.  G. Benavides seconded.  Motion carried with all in favor. 

 
        3.2 Glendale Ordinance- Sheldon Morgan explained the wording change to the     
Glendale Ordinance changing the definition of “jet ski” to ski craft” as defined in the RSA. 
     
   Public Input- George Walley, asked about using signs for watercraft based on certain size or 
type (i.e. kayaks, sail boats, row boats) to use the sand area on the left in order to be out of the 
way for the larger power boats.  He also spoke about signs directing incoming traffic from the 
water. Chairman Boucher suggested that Mr. Walley go to the Committee with the 
suggestions.  S. Morgan said he has used signs and arrows before and they will revisit that 
issue.  
 
Selectman’s Questions-C. Grant commented about the existing signs on the site directing 
traffic. 

 



Selectmen’s Minutes – April 25, 2007                                    Page 2 of 7 

 
Chairman Boucher closed the public hearing. 
 
Vote- C. Grant moved to change ordinance from “jet ski” to “ski craft” G. Benavides 
seconded.  Motion carried with all in favor. 
 
         3.3 Assistance to Firefighters Grant- Deputy Chief Beland explained the request for the 
grant which includes (1) $15, 500 for a commercial washer for uniforms, gear and a drying 
rack; (2) $15,000 for new exercise equipment and training two (2) people as fitness 
counselors. 
   
    Public Input- Burt Wayson asked if the Police Department would be able to use the 
equipment. Deputy Chief Beland said all town employees would be eligible to use the 
equipment.   
 
Chairman Boucher asked about cost, location and maintenance for the proposed items and 
training.  Deputy Chief Beland explained the training for the counselors is included in the 
grant and he is not sure of any additional costs for the counselors or maintenance for the 
requested equipment.  He said the new fitness equipment would be located on the second 
floor.   
 
G. Benavides asked for more information on start up costs, long-term costs and warranty 
issues for the equipment.  He asked about the Town matching funds of $1525.00 and if it is 
itemized in the 2007 budget or it is going to be classified as additional budget items.  It was 
discussed the $1525.00 was included in the 2007 budget. 
 
C. Grant asked about training the counselors and if the requested items will affect the grant. 
Deputy Chief Beland said they are looking to institute a mandatory fitness program for 
Gilford firemen as a way to reduce liability issues and training fitness counselors is the first 
step in that program. Deputy Chief said the fitness equipment is included from the grant last 
year and any changes will not affect the current grant. 
 
Discussion ensued about length of time for training for the fitness instructors and if it would 
cost the department money in over time.  Deputy Chief Beland told the Selectmen he would 
get them more information on the following items: closing date for the grant application, 
warranty on equipment, cost of fitness instructor & will that cost cause more overtime and if it 
is an extra budget item. 
Chairman Boucher closed the public hearing. 
 
C. Grant moved to table the issue in order for the Fire Department to provide more 
information on the grant application including: closing date for application, warranty on 
equipment, cost of fitness instructor & will that cost more overtime and if it is an extra budget 
item.  G. Benavides seconded. Motion carried with all in favor. 

     Chairman Boucher closed the public hearing at 3:30 p.m. 

4.0 APPOINTMENTS  
  
            4.1     Sue Jensen, Town Clerk/Tax Collector Office– Gave an update to the Board 

on the restored record books paid for by a grant funded from the “Moose” plate 



Selectmen’s Minutes – April 25, 2007                                    Page 3 of 7 

registrations.  She explained they also have the option to have old records put on disks. 
She and Jennifer Mooney showed the Selectmen the completed volumes of restored 
books and explained the process. 

            
            G. Benavides complimented S. Jensen and the staff on the work and research completed 

for the books.  He asked if the cd’s could be purchased.  S. Jensen said there has been 
some discussion on selling the information on disks and providing access on the 
website.  C. Grant asked about storage for the books and S. Jensen said the shelves 
they are buying are designed specifically these types of storage books. 

 
           The Selectmen complimented S. Jensen on her work and the Town Clerk staff in 

preserving the records.  
 
5.0 NEW BUSINESS 

 

5.1 Street Light Request – Elks Lodge- S. Morgan does not see a safety issue on 
site and they normally recommend street lights from public to public streets 
and he does not see the need for additional lights for the site.  He believes more 
lighting provided by the Elks would alleviate lighting issues on site. 

 
G. Benavides asked about the costs to install a new pole or use power from an existing 
pole.  S. Morgan said it would cost about $1000.00 for a new pole and $7-$10/month 
for using the existing pole.  C. Grant commended S. Morgan on his research for the 
request from the Elks. 
 
G. Benavides moved to deny the request.  C. Grant seconded. Motion carried with all 
in favor. 
 
5.2 2007 Roadway Improvement Contract- D. Shackett said they are not ready 

to make a recommendation. 
 

5.3 Vessel Safety Inspections- D. Shackett said it is a voluntary program offered 
by the NH Marine Patrol to do safety inspections and they have performed 
inspections at the Gilford Town Docks.   

 
Chairman Boucher asked Chief Markland if there have been any issues on Saturdays 
with the NH Marine Patrol there.  Chief Markland said no.  C. Grant asked if the 
marine patrol is taking personal information from people.   
Chief Markland suggested D. Shackett contact the NH Marine Patrol and possibly give 
a presentation to the Selectmen. 
 

            C. Grant moved to table the request to get more information from the NH                                               
Marine Patrol and have them attend a meeting to explain the program to the 
Selectmen. G. Benavides seconded. Motion carried with all in favor.   
 
5.4       Resignation – Rector- Chief Markland Chief Markland explained the 
resignation and said they will be advertising the position soon.  He said and they are 
looking to hire certified officers and it will take a few weeks to complete the hiring 
process. 
 



Selectmen’s Minutes – April 25, 2007                                    Page 4 of 7 

G. Benavides moved to accept the resignation of Officer Rector. C. Grant seconded. 
Motion carried with all in favor. 
 
5.5 Seasonal Hires – Gilford Beach- H. Greene explained the people they plan on 

hiring are returning from last year and the costs have been included in the 2007 
budget 

 
C. Grant moved to approve the hiring of all people, at the proposed pay scale as listed 
in memo from H. Greene. G. Benavides seconded.  Motion carried with all in favor. 
 
5.6 Cornelia de Lange Syndrome Awareness Day- D. Shackett explained there 

are cases of this syndrome in Gilford.  Chairman Boucher read a declaration 
into the record declaring May 12, 2007 as the Cornelia de Lange Syndrome 
Awareness Day. 

 
5.7 Fire Engine Resolution- D. Shackett explained the Selectmen have to sign a 

resolution stating they discussed the need for the fire truck and all the proper 
approval items have occurred.  They also have to designate either the Town 
Administrator, Evans Juris or herself as the Assistant Town Administrator, the 
authority to sign the documents for the lease. 
She explained the Town Attorney made suggestions to be included in the lease 
and the company agreed. 
 
C. Grant moved to enter into the lease agreement for the fire engine, designate 
Deb Shackett, Assistant Town Administrator, as the representative authorized 
to sign the lease on behalf of the Town of Gilford and that all proper approval 
items and hearings relating to the lease have been completed.  G. Benavides 
seconded.  Motion carried with all in favor.  

 

5.8 Police Vehicle Maintenance- Chief Markland discussed a change in the 
proposed plan.  He discussed the need for additional traffic duty in the future 
within Gilford and requests from other police departments for additional traffic 
details.  He is proposing to remove car #8 from the fleet and keep the smaller 
van for road detail.  He said he did not plan on changing the maintenance plan, 
but there have been some unforeseen changes he now has to address.   

 
The Board of Selectmen approved Chief Markland’s request regarding the fleet 
maintenance. 

 
6.0 OLD BUSINESS 

 

6.1 Drinking Water Protection Committee 

Chairman Boucher decided to table the decision on this committee as the 
DWPC is meeting tonight to decide their future. 

 
C. Grant discussed the Drinking Water Protection Committee overlapping duties of other 
town committees.  She asked about the creation of brochures when the NHDES issues similar 
information.  She said members of the public have expressed concern over too many 
committees doing similar work.  Chairman Boucher will ask the committee what their future 
plans are and to have them come before the Selectmen to discuss the issue. 



Selectmen’s Minutes – April 25, 2007                                    Page 5 of 7 

         
7.0     PUBLIC INPUT –Cutter Mitchell, reporter from The Citizen, asked about the 
condition of the roads since the floods.  The Selectmen said they will not discuss the issue. 

 

8.0 SIGNATURES- 

 
DATE 

SIGNED DOCUMENT MAP/LOT # 

   

08/06/06 Change of Status - Beland  

03/04/07 Change of Status - Morrissette  

04/01/07 Change of Status - Craver  

04/02/07 Accounts Payable Manifest  

04/03/07 Payroll Register  

04/05/07 Accounts Payable Manifest  

04/09/07 Payroll Register (2)  

04/10/07 Accounts Payable Manifest  

04/10/07 Abatement - Curley 223-433.000 

04/11/07 Accounts Payable Manifest  

04/11/07 Payroll Register  

04/13/07 Payroll Register (2)  

04/14/07 Change of Status - LeRoux  

04/16/07 Abatement - Cote 210-024.000 

04/16/07 Abatement - McMath 210-025.000 

04/16/07 Abatement - Fontaine 210-027.000 

04/16/07 Abatement Denial - Neumeier 267-012.035 

04/16/07 Abatement Denial - Mourges 267-012.047 

04/16/07 Abatement Denial - Scarputo 267-012.029 

04/16/07 Abatement Denial - Carroll 267-012.016 

04/16/07 Abatement Denial - Zoletti 267-012.011 

04/16/07 Abatement Denial - St. Pierre 267-012.008 

04/16/07 Abatement Denial - Stevens 267-012.106 

04/16/07 Abatement - Downes 210-026.000 

04/16/07 Abatement - Niskala 210-006.000 

04/16/07 Payroll Register  

04/16/07 Accounts Payable Manifest (2)  

04/19/07 Intent to Excavate - Andrew P. Sanborn Farm LLC 232-002.001 

04/20/07 Current Use Application - Boulanger 230-022.001 

04/20/07 Current Use Application - Boulanger 229-055.000 

04/20/07 Current Use Application - Dame 215-029.000 

04/25/07 Sewer Warrant  

04/25/07 Proclamation of Cornelia de Lange Awareness Day  

04/25/07 Change of Status - Seasonal Recreation Hires  

04/25/07 Resolution for Fire Truck Lease  
 

9.0 SELECTMEN’S ISSUES –  

 



Selectmen’s Minutes – April 25, 2007                                    Page 6 of 7 

9.1 Meeting Times-  Chairman Boucher suggested G. Benavides meet with E. Juris and G. 
Benavides agreed and said that is what he prefers. Motion made by G. Benavides to table the 
item until E. Juris returns from vacation. C. Grant seconded. Motion carried with all in favor. 
 

9.2 Meeting Dates – December- Chairman Boucher discussed the third week in December 
as a meeting date. 

C. Grant moved to have the December 2007 meeting on the third Wednesday of the month, 
which would be December 19th.  The Selectmen will still have the option of adding meetings as 
necessary. G. Benavides seconded.  Motion carried with all in favor. 
 

G. Benavides thanked the Police and Fire Chiefs, DPW Director S. Morgan and all the town 
employees for the hard work during the floods.  He wants them all to know that the hard work 
does not go unnoticed. 
 

C. Grant brought up the alternate ex-officio position for the Board of Selectmen to the Planning 
Board.  They discussed the process of deciding an alternate ex-officio and will discuss it with J. 
Ayer and the Planning Board. 
 

Public Portion of the meeting ended at 4:35 p.m. 
 

10.0 ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT  

 

10.1 Non-Public Session 91-A: 3 II (c) (d) 

 

 The Board of Selectmen on a roll call vote entered Non-Public Session at 4:36 p.m.   
 
Present were: Selectmen Alice Boucher, Connie Grant, Gus Benavides, Assistant Town 
Administrator Debra Shackett and Administrative Secretary Stephanie Verdile Philibotte. 
Also present were Ronny Bean and his family. 
 
While in Non-Public Session, no action was taken. 
 
The Board exited Non-Public session at 5:20 p.m. 
 
11.0 NEXT MEETING: 

Wednesday, May 9, 2007.    

 
12.0 ADJOURNMENT 

The Selectmen discussed tabling the work session discussion on the Code of Ethics to a 
future date. 
 
With no further business before the Board, the Board of Selectmen’s April 25, 2007 
meeting was adjourned at 5:25 p.m. 

 

 

 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 



Selectmen’s Minutes – April 25, 2007                                    Page 7 of 7 

 
Stephanie Verdile Philibotte 
Administrative Secretary 
 


